CCASE:

SCL (MSHA) V. SUPERI OR ROCK
DDATE:

19840424

TTEXT:



~1045

Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABCR, CIVIL PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. WEST 81-261-M
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 42-01711-05001
V.
SUPERI OR ROCK PRCODUCTS, M. Pleasant Pit Mne
RESPONDENT
DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Robert J. Lesnick, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U S. Department of Labor, Denver, Col orado,
for Petitioner;
Respondent di d not appear

Bef or e: Judge Morris

The Secretary of Labor, on behalf of the Mne Safety and
Heal th Admini stration, (MSHA), charges respondent with violating
various safety regul ati ons promul gated under the Federal M ne
Safety and Health Act, 30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq., (the "Act").

After notice to the parties, a hearing on the nerits was
hel d on Septenber 7, 1983 in Salt Lake City, U ah. Respondent
failed to appear at the hearing and further failed to respond to
the Order To Show Cause issued on Septenber 9, 1983

| ssues

The issues are whether respondent violated the regul ations
and, if so, what penalties are appropriate.

Citation 583694

This citation alleges a violation of Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations, Section 56.14-6 which provides:

56.14-6 Mandatory. Except when testing the machinery,
guards shall be securely in place while machinery is
bei ng oper at ed.

MSHA' s I nspector WIlliam W WIson has been in the agency's
enpl oy since 1978. His m ning experience began with Phel ps Dodge
Corporation in 1968 (Tr. 3-5).
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On Novenber 21, 1980, witness WIson inspected respondent’'s
si ngl e bench sand and gravel operation (Tr. 5, 6). Kenneth
Allred, who identified hinself as the vice-president and genera
manager, stated the m ne had been operating since the previous
sumer (Tr. 6).

The inspector did not know about the existence of the mne
until he saw it while he was travelling over U S. H ghway No. 89
(Tr. 7). In viewing the plant, the inspector observed a
Caterpillar generator and a Clarke front-end | oader. Cenerators
and | oaders of this type are manufactured in the State of
[Ilinois (Tr. 7).

The inspector wote this citation because the guard for the
48 inch high shaker pulley and D belt were not in place. This
condition constituted a hazard to workers on the wal kway (Tr.
8-12, Exhibits 1, 2 3). Personnel could be caught on the noving
parts. There were two, sonetinmes three, enployees on the site
(Tr. 12, 13). The inspector considered this citation and al
except one of the remaining citations to be significant and
substantial (Tr. 13-15).

Citation 583695

This citation alleges a violation of Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations, Section 56.14-1, which provides:
Guar ds

56.14-1 Mandatory. Cears; sprockets; chains; drive,
head, tail, and takeup pulleys; flywheels; couplings;
shafts; sawbl ades; fan inlets; and simlar exposed
nmovi ng machi ne parts which may be contacted by persons,
and which may cause injury to persons, shall be

guar ded

The MSHA inspector took photographs showi ng that the chain
drive belt (45 inches fromthe wal kway) feeding the shakers and
the D-belt assenbly was not guarded. Exhibit 1 shows the highly
vi si bl e unguarded condition (Tr. 15, 17). If the two or three
enpl oyees were standi ng on the wal kway, they could be caught in
the chain drive and pulley assenbly (Tr. 16).

Citation 583697

This citation alleges a violation of Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations, Section 56.14-1, cited above.

The MSHA inspector testified that the west side of the D
belt assenbly underneath the shaker was not guarded (Tr. 17). In
addition, the area was accessible to enployees (Tr. 17, Exhibit
3). There
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were footprints within 17 inches and the assenbly was six to
seven inches above ground level (Tr. 19). In this area and in the
previously cited areas an enpl oyee could contact the pinch points
wi thout tripping or lunging (Tr. 19).

Citation 583698

This citation alleges a violation of Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations, Section 56.12-13(b). The cited section in
full provides as foll ows:

56.12-13 Mandatory. Permanent splices and repairs nade
i n power cables, including the ground conductor where
provi ded, shall be: (a) Mechanically strong with

el ectrical conductivity as near as possible to that of
the original; (b) Insulated to a degree at |east equa
to that of the original, and sealed to excl ude

nmoi sture; and (c) Provided with damage protection as
near as possible to that of the original, including
good bonding to the outer jacket.

I nspector W1 son observed and phot ographed certain
uni nsul ated electrical wires at the worksite. Bare netal was
showi ng in nore than one place (Tr. 20-24, Exhibits 4-9). This
condition was adjacent to a travelled wal kway (Tr. 24). The upper
wire on Exhibit 8 was 53 inches above the ground (Tr. 24).

Citation 583699

This citation alleges a violation of Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations, Section 56.4-24(b), which provides:

56. 4-24 Mandatory. Fire extinguishers and fire
suppressi on devi ces shall be: (b) Adequate in nunber
and size for the particular fire hazard invol ved.

I nspector WIlson could not | ocate any fire extinguishers on
the property (Tr. 26, 27). Any fire would not be controlled. (Tr.
26) .

I nspector WIson would not consider this violation as
significant and substantial if he was witing the citation on the
day of the hearing (Tr. 27).
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Citation 583700

This citation alleges a violation of Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations, Section 56.26-1, which provides:

56.26-1 Mandatory. The owner, operator, or person in
charge of any netal and non-netal mne shall notify the
nearest M ning Enforcenent in Safety Adm nistration
Metal and Nonnetal M ne Health and Safety sub-district
of fice before starting operations, of the approxi mate
or actual date mine operation will commence. The
notification shall include the m ne nanme, |ocation, the
conpany name, nmailing address, person in charge, and
whet her operations will be continuous or intermttent.

VWhen any mne is closed, the person in charge shal
notify the nearest sub-district office as provided
above and indi cate whether the closure is tenporary or
per manent .

According to Inspector WIson, conpany representative Allred
stated the conpany had been in operation and the inspector
observed that hinself. Allred did not claimthe conpany had
regi stered under another nane. In fact, Alred pl eaded ignorance
of MSHA's regulation (Tr. 27, 28).

Di scussi on

The evidence offered in connection with each citation
establish a violation of the rel evant regul ation. Accordingly,
each citation should be affirned.

| further rely on the inspector's judgnment and affirmthe
significant and substantial assertion as to all of the citations
except nunber 583699, (fire extinguishers). In connection with
this citation, the inspector indicated at the hearing that he did
not consider that violation to be significant and substanti al
Accordingly, the allegations of significant and substantial as to
Citation 583699 are stricken

Cvil Penalties

The six criteria for assessing a civil penalty is set forth
in 30 U S C 0O820(i),
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points for respondent’'s size or history of previous violation
Negl i gence points are assessed for all citations except numnber
583699 (fire extinguishers). The assessment points proposed for
gravity appear to be in order

The O fice of Assessment failed to credit respondent with
any good faith, but each citation shows respondent abated the
violative condition. By virtue of that fact, the Secretary's
proposed assessnents appear to be excessive.

The proposed assessnents should be nodified as foll ows:

Ori gi nal
Citation No. Pr oposed Di sposition
583694 (guards not secured) $ 44 $ 25
583695 (unguar ded belt) 44 25
583697 (unguarded D belt) 44 25
583698 (splices not insulated) 34 20
583699 (fire extinguishers) 8 6
583700 (failure to report) 8 6
ORDER

Based on the facts and conclusions of |law recited herein, |
affirmthe following citati ons and assess the penalties as noted
t hereafter:

1. Citation No. Penal ty
583694 $ 25
583695 25
583697 25
583698 20
583699 6
583700 6

2. Respondent is ordered to pay the sumof $107 within 40
days of the date of this order

John J. Morris
Admi ni strative Law Judge



